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GAILL ARD, Crawford Courty. Namedin hona
of the noted enginea, whosurveyed the difficult
grade for the railroad through this area

GAINESVILLE , CSHall Courty. Pronourced
"Gaines-vul." Called "The Queen City of the
Mourtains' or "Poutry Capitd of the World." Made
the county sea and incorporated as a vill age
November 30, 181 Named, at the suggestion d
JohnVance Cotter (b. 179), for Virginia-born
Genera EdmundPend etonGaines(1777-1849.
Cotter had served under Genera GainesintheWar
of 1812.Inthe ealy days, the ommunity herewas
cdled MULE CAMP SHRINGS. Thepost office
was opened in 1823.Gainesvill e is the nation's
leading center of broil er productioninthe dhicken
indwstry. GAINESVILLE COLLEGE isapart of
theUniversity Systemof Georgia, andwaschartered
herein 1965.

GALL OWS HALL OW, LumpkinCounty. This
isthe name given to adeep ravine in bad of the
Dahlonega canetery, so designated after Hamilton
Sneal andaman named Joneswere hanged here.

GALPHINTON, Jeff ersonCourty. Thiswasan
ealy trading post onthe Ogeetee River, establi shed
by Indian trader, George Galphin prior to the
foundng of Georgia. This was later cdled
OGEECHEE TOWN, and finally referred to as
OLD TOWN. See Fort Galphin.

GAMM ON THEOLOGICAL SEMINARY,
Atlanta. Foundedin 188For the education d Negro
ministers. Thenamewaschosento hona Rev. Elijah
H. Gammon,who gave generous financial aid to
establish this <hod.

GANNET LAKE, Ware Courty. This15aae
lakeisinGrandPrairie(g.v.) inthesoutheast sedion
of OkefenokeeSwamp. So named becaise"black-
end-wing gannet" water birds are here in large
numbers.

GANSAGI, GordonCourty. Thiswasan adive
Cherokeelnd an settlement near the present city
of Calhoun.The ealier name of CONASAUGA
(g.v.) was corrupted to the later "Gansagi." It is
beli eved that DeSoto tarried ashort time herein
his1540expeditionintothisregion.SeealsoNew
Echota.

GARDEN CITY, ChathamCourty. Incorporated
February 8, 1939as the town of INDUSTRIAL
CITY GARDENS. The namewas changedtothe
present one March 24, 1941at whichtimeit was
reincorporated.

GARDI, WayneCounty. Pronourced " Gar-dye."
It was said that this community was named after
the dense GARDI SWAMPneaby, wherepeople
had to guard their eyeswhen pushing through the
thickets. Anather explanation was that an ealy
family named GARDNER had ereded asign that
brokeoff at the endtakingmost of the"N" toleave
thename"Gardi" that isthe namewhichwasadoped
for this place

GARFIELD, Emanuel Courty. Incorporated as
atown August 23, 1905May have been named
in horor of U.S. President James Garfield, who
was assassnated in 1881.

GASCOIGNE'S BLUFF, Glynn Couny.
Pronourced " Gas-co-neeze." Locdaed at theright
of the St. Simons Causeway whereit approaches
St. Simons Island. Named for Captain James
Gascoigne, commander of theman-of-war Hawk,
which conveyed thetwo shipsbringing settlersto
Georgiain 1736 Amongthose arivingthenwere
John and Charles Wesley and many German
Salzburgers and Moravians. This ®dion d the
island yielded the live oak timbers for the U.S.
Frigate Constitution or "Old Ironsides."

GATE CITY (Atlanta). This nickname for
Georgiascapital city wasfirst suggestedinatoast
at abanquet in Charlestonin 1857, in reference
to Atlantasfamoushaspitality totravel erspassng
through the southwest.

GAY, Meriwether Courty. Originaly cadled
SASERVILLE (g.v.). Sincetherewasalrealy a
town of Sas<er in the state, Congressman Henry
R. Harrisnamedthepost officefor Willi am G. Gay
who had opened the first store here and was the
grandson of Willi am Sasser, thefirst settler. Mr.
Gay was eleded the first Mayor when the town
was incorporated August 27, 1907.

GEECHEE, Jefferson County. This former
commurnity waslocaed twelvemil esfromLouisvill e
nea Grange. Was 3 named becausetheplacewas
settledwith Negroesfromthe aast whospokethe
Geedeediaed.

GENERAL COFFEE STATE PARK,Coffee
County. This1,495aaeparkislocaedfivemiles
east of Doudas. Named for General JohnE. Coffee
(see CoffeeCourty).

GENERAL'S CUT, Mclntosh Courty. Thisname
refers to a canal cut through the marshlands of



General's Idland

Generd'sldand(qg.v.) between Frederica andDarien
in 1808.

GENERAL'S ISLAND, McIntoshCourty. Locéted
aaosstheDarienRiver fromDarien, it washamed
in hona of Generd LadlanMclntosh (seeMclntosh
County) who established hishome herein 1758.

GENEVA, Talbat Courty. Incorporated October
18, 1870.The name was taken from the dty in
Switzerland.First settled before 1840.1nthe 1850's
the ealy community was cdled KOOCKOGEY

(g.v.).

GENOLA, Carroll County. Thiswasasuburban
town, oremilewest of Carrollton,andthesite of
the present West GeorgiaColl ege. May havebeen
named from the vill age of Gendain Italy.

GEORGE, LAKE. BordersClay, Quitmanand
Stewart courties. Also cdled WALTER F.
GEORGE RESERVOIR (g.v.).

GEORGETOWN, Bryan County. The origina
name of HARDWICK (qg.v.), presumably named
for King Georgell. Therewasalso aplacenamed
GEORGETOWN, locaed nathwest of Mitchell
in Glascock Courty, whichisnow aghost town.

GEORGETOWN, CSQuitman Courty. Thename
waschangedfromTABANAN A (q.v) September
21, 1836Incorporated and designated the county
sed Decamber 9,1859 and remed for Georgetown,
D.C.

GEORGE WASHINGTON CARVER STATE
PARK, Bartow County. This307-aae park was
developed for Negroes in the 1930's. Named in
hona of Carver (18641943, who was born in
Missouri of slave parents, graduated from lowa
State Coll ege, andtaught at Tuskegeelnstitutein
Alabama. He developed 300 poducts from the
peanut plant.

GEORGE WASHINGTON HIGHWAY .The
gtate highway from Savannehto Augustawasnamed
after the Nation's first president.

GEORGIA. Charter wasgranted June9, 1732 by
the Engli sh sovereign, Georgell . Thecolonywas
namedin hishonar, takingthe L atinized formfor
a placename. Perhaps the ealiest names given
totheregionwhichisnow Georgia, were BIMINI
(gv.) andanealy namethelndansgaveto Georgia,
E-CUNNAU-NUX-ULGEE, whichmeans"People
greddily grasping after thelands of thered men.”
The Greek word georgia means"agriculture.” In
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the 16th Century the Spaniards cdled theislands
and coastal region GUALE (q.v.), andtheinland
territory they cdled TAMA (g.v.). Asthe clonies
were being establi shed further north in the 17th
century, the present Georgiaregionwasincluded
in the land referred to as FLORIDA (g.v.). It is
beli eved that thefirst mapwhich showedthisregion
with the name "Georgid' wasonedrawnin 1715
by HermanMoall (thiswasduringthereign o George
| who ded in 1727. In the yea 1717, Robert
Montgomery propcsed the establi shment of a @lony
here to be cdled MARGRAVATE OF AZILIA
(q.v.). Fiveyeaslaterin 1722,the Swisspromoter
Jean Pierre Purry interested the Board of Trade
in the scheme to projed the English settlement
westwardaongtheparall € of 33degreesto begiven
the name of "Georgia" (in hona of King George
1). Thefirst public written mention d the name
"Georgia (honaing George Il) was in London
Magazine, June 3, 1732.Thetrustees surrendered
their charter andGeorgiabecane aroyal province
onJune 23, 17520n January 19, 1861 Georgia
secaled fromthe Union; in 187 1representatives
werereadmittedto U.S. Congress Georgiahasno
official sobriquet, but has ometimesbeen cdled
"The Empire State of the South," "Pead State,"
"Gooler Sate," " Cradker State’ (q.v.), and ™Y ankee-
Land d theSouth." Theoriginal charter toestablish
the Colony of Georgia asdgnedtothetrusteesthe
region between the Savannah and the Altamaha
rivers, fromtheheadwatersthereof, andwestward
to the Padfic. Today Georgiaisthe largest state
east of theMissssppi River, withanareaof 58,86
square miles, with a length of 315 miles, and a
breadth of 250 miles. In 1991, Georgia had a
popuation of 6,62300Q ranking fifteenth in the
United States. The caoital cityisAtlanta(q.v.), after
previously being located at Savannah, Augusta,
Louisville and Mill edgevill e.

GEORGIA BAPTIST COLLE GE, Maamn.
Foundedin 1899 ly Willil am E. Holmes, itsfirst
president. First named, CENTRAL CITY COL-
LEGE, it wasaschod establi shed to offer higher
educaionto badks. The institution was located
in east Mamon ona232aaesite surrounding the
intersedion of the present Gray Highway and
ShurlingtonDrive. The ollege dosedin 1956 de
to mismanagement.

GEORGIA COLLE GE, Mill edgevill e. Establi shed
and chartered as GEORGIA NORMAL INDUS-
TRIAL COLLEGEIin 1889jt becane WOMAN'S
COLLEGE OF GEORGIA in 1961.The present
namewasadogedin 196 7whenthe @ll egebecane
coeducaiondl. It isapart of theUniversity System
of Georgia.
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GEORGIA INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY,
Atlanta. Popuarly referredtoas"GeorgiaTech,"
it ispart of the University System of Georgia. In
1882, Representative (later governor) Nathaniel
Edwin Harris of Bibb Courty, introduced a bill
which provided for the establishment of a state
technicd schod, at the suggestion d Mawn
indwstriai st, Mgjor JohnFletcher Hanson.lt was
chartered in 1885and opened in 1888.The first
two bul dingswere completedin 1838,the present
ADMINISTRATION BUILDING and the OLD
SHOPBUILDING. The ealy textil e department
washousedinthe A. FRENCH BUILDING, named
in 1899for Pennsylvania dona, Aaron French.
SWANN DORMITORY, finished in 1901, was
namedfor JanieAustell Swann,wifeof contributor
JamesSvann.LYMAN HALL CHEMICAL LABO-
RATORY wasnamedfor LymanHall (1860-1905,
thesecond pesident of theUniversity, resporsible
foritsealy growthand cevelopment. BRITTAIN
HALL was named for the fourth president of the
University, Dr. MarionL. Brittain. GRANT FIELD
was named in memory of Hugh Inman Grant, the
son d trusteeof the University, JohnW. Grant.

GEORGIA MILITARY COLLEGE,Mill edge-
vill e. Establishedin 1879 ntheold State Capitol
Buil ding, thebuil dingandgroundsbeing agift of
the State. Originally cdled MIDDLE GEORGIA
MILITARY AND AGRICULTURAL COLLEGE,
thepresent nameof thismunicipally operated high
schod was adopted in 1900.

GEORGIA STATE FAIR,Mamn.Heldannwdly
in October at Mamn'sCentra City Park. Thefirst
state fair was organized by the Southern Central
Agricultural Society and held at Stone Mountain
beginningin 1846.Thefair wasmovedto Atlanta
in 1850and cameto Mamnin 1851.

GEORGIA STATE UNIVERSITY, Atlanta.
Founcedin 1913asGEORGIA TECH EVENING
SCHOOL OF COMMERCE. In 1947it becane
theATLANTADIVISION OF THEUNIVERSITY
OFGEORGIA, then GEORGIA STATECOLLEGE
OFBUSINESSADMINISTRATIONIn 1955which
wasshortenedto GEORGIA STATE COLLEGE
in 1961.The present name was adopted in 1969.

GEORGIA SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY,

Statesharo. Part of theUniversity Systemof Georgia,

it wasfoundedin 1906 Openedin1908asFIRST

DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL AND MECHANI-

CAL HIGHSCHOOL. In 1924t becane GEORGIA

NORMAL SCHOOQOL, then becane SOUTHERN

GEORGIA TEACHERS COLLEGE in 1929,
GEORGIA TEACHERSCOLLEGEin 193%nd
GEORGIA SOUTHERN COLLEGE in 1969.

Gill sville

GEORGIA SOUTHWESTERN COLLEGE,
Americus. Part of theUniversity Systemof Georgia
Established in 1907as atwo-yea coll ege cdled
THIRD DISTRICT AGRICULTURAL AND
MECHANICAL HIGHSCHOOL. Thepresent name
was adopted in 1933.

GEORGIA, UNIVERSITY OF, Athens. See
University of Georgia.

GEORGIA VETERANS MEMORIAL STATE
PARK, Crisp County. Dealed to the State by the
Commissionersof CrigpCourtyin 1946 This1,307
aae park includes a milit ary museum, and was
namedinhona of the State'smen andwomenwho
served in World Wars| andll. It islocaed seven
miles west of Cordele on the shore of Lake
Bladkshea, nea the site of Fort Early (q.v.).

GERBER, Wdker Courty. Thisformer community
waslocaedinthenorthwest sedion d the courty,
where postmaster G.F. Gerber wasa chemist and
winemaker (1881).

GERMAINES ISLAND, ColumbiaCourty. See
Uscheelsland.

GERMAN(Y) CREEK,McDuffieCourty. Rises
east of Thomsonandflows northward into Clark
Hill Reservoir. McCommons and Stovall said it
washamedfor anealy whitesettler wholived nea
this gream, whil e Brinkley writesthat it wasnamed
for agroup d German Quakerswho settled here.

GERMAN VILLAGE, GlynnCounty. Thiswas
the name which referred to aformer community
two mil eseast of Fredericaon St. Simons|Island,
where some of the German Salzburgers sttledin
1736andleft in 1749.

GHOST HOLE FORD, CharltonCourty. Located
just over amile @ove Moniaconthe St. Marys
River.Itissaidto be anamederivedfromafrontier
killi nginvolvingahad-upandshoating of astage
coach driver.

GIBSON, CS Glascock Courty. Incorporated
August 20, 1913 Namedin hona of Judge WiIli am
Gibson (18221893 who dorated $500for Glascock
County'sfirst pulicbuil dings. Asa wlonel inthe
Confederate amy, hewaswounded at the Seaond
Battle of Manassas and again at Gettysburg. The
post officewas establi shed hereMarch 31, 1858.

GILLSVILLE,Hall andBankscourties. Incorpo-
rated December 16, 1901Namedfor asettler family
of Gill s. Theoriginal community herewascal ed
STONETHROW (in 1796) by rail road crews snce
it was auch a short distancefrom Maysvill e.
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GILMERCOUNTY. Creged Decenber 3,1832
with 439squaremil estaken from part of Cherokee
Courty. Named for George Rockingham Gil mer
(17801859 in recognition d hisinsistencethat
the Cherokeelnd ansberemoved fromthisregion.
He served as U.S. Congresgman (1824 andwas
the sixteenth governor of Georgia. See also Fort
Gilmer. Governor Gilmer's home stands in
Lexington, Oglethorpe Courty. The @murty sea

isEllijay (q.v.).

(THE) GLADE, Oglethorpe Courty. Thiswas
the ealy nameof POINT PETER (q.v.). Theword
glade means "an opening among trees.”

GLADE CREEK, Habersham County. Flows
westerly to enter the SoqueeRiver above Clarkes-
vill ethrough GLADE CREEK (Militi 8) DISTRICT.
Named for the Glade Mining Company which
operated in the aeaduring the 1830s.

GLADE (Militia) DISTRICT, Hall Courty.
Named after GLADE SHOALSwhich areinthe
North OconeeRiver east of Gainesvill e.

GLADESVILLE, Jasper County. A former
community locaed 12 miles suthwest of
Mornticdlo, sometimes cdled THE GLADES.
Named for itslocaion an aglade or grassy open
plain.NeabyisGLADESVILLE CREEK which
flowssoutherly to beaomeFalli ng Creek nea the
Jones County line.

GLASCOCK COUNTY .CrededDecamber 19,
1857with 142square mil es taken from part of
Warren County. Named for General Thomas
Glascock (17801841, banin Augusta, whoserved
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inthe Wa of 1812 aso Semindetroudesof 1817,
andwasan dfice of thestate militi a. Hewasdeded
totheU.S. House of Representativesin 1835The
courty sea is Gibson (q.v.).

GLASGOW, ThamasCourty. A former commurity
named for the aty in Scotland by several Scotch
famili es who settled herein 1826.Remaining is
only theGlasgow Church, about tenmil es outheast
of Thomasvill e.

GLENDALE, FultonCourty. Cander andEvans
describe this as a hamlet in old Milton Courty,
located five miles east of Roswell. The ealy
res dentsprobably gavethisnamefor commendatory
purposes.

GLENLOCH, Head Courty. A former post office
was established herein 1886,abou threemiles
northeast of the community of Centralhatchee The
name is of Scotch arigin, meaning "Glen Lake"
or "Lake-in-a-glen."

GLENVILLE, Tattnall Courty. " The Accommo-
dating City" Incorporated asacity August 24, 1905
Named for thenoted minister andeducator, Glenn
Thompson.

GLENWOOD, Montgomery Courty. The post
office opened May 1, 1890and the town was
incorporated August 11, 1908Thedescriptivename
chosen suggestsaglen in asmall valley

GLOSTER, Gwinnett Courty. Pronourced
"Glosstuh! A community locaed six miles
southwest of Lawrencevill eontheY ell ow River.
Named for arailroad official. The postofficewas
here from 1893to 1946.

GLYNCO, GlynnCourty. Locaed just north of
Brunswick, this U.S. Nava Air Station was
edtabli shedfrom1942to 1973 Thenameisa mined
word madeby droppgngan"n" fromGlynnCo.In
1975this1,600-acrefadlit y becanethenew home
of theFederal Law Enforcement Training Center.

GLYNN COUNTY. Creded February 5, 1777
with423squaremilesaaquired by Creek cessons
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of November 10, 1763and November 12,1785.
Thiswasan ariginal courty previously organized
in 1765%asthe parishesof St. DavidandSt. Patrick.
Namedfor JohnGlynn(17221779, naed member
of Parliament, afriend o the @mlonies, and who
was once Sergeant of Londam (that city's legal
advisor). The ounty sea isBrunswick (q.v.). The
court house was destroyed by stormin 1896.

GOAT ROCK DAM,HarrisCourty. Completed
in1912 ortheChattahoacheeRiver tocreae GOAT
ROCK LAKE. Both were named from a large
bouder ontheriver'sedgewhichwascdl ed GOAT
ROCK by CullenandAbbTerry, whoasboysliked
towatch fromherethegoatsof aMr. Smith onthe
Alabamaside of theriver.

GOAT TOWN, WashingtonCounty. Thisname
of astore and road intersedion onthe west side
of Degpstep, was © named by awaginreference
to alarge flock of goats kept by the ealy store
owner.

GODFREY, Morgan Courty. This town was
incorporated July 25, 1906to July 1, 1995,and
namedfor ealy resident, Dr. ErvineGodfrey, who
came here from Savannah.

GOGGINS, Lamar Courty. Thiscommunity is
locaed threemil eseast of Barnesvill eonthe Central
of Georgia Railway. Has aso been cdled
GOGGANSVILLE and GOGGANS STATION.
Named for JohnF. Goggins, father of Willi am J.
Goggins who dorated the site for the station.

GOLDEN GHETT O, FultonCourty. A sobriquet
of Sandy Springs (q.v.).

GOLDEN GROVE, Liberty Courty. In 1748,
Willi amHester of North Caroli naused thisname
for thefirst timein Georgia. Thiswasaplantation
site onthe south side of the Midway River.

GOLDEN GROVE, ToombsCourty. Thisname
appliesto abendand ker onthe Altamaha River,
abou onemil ebelow thebridgeof U.S. high-way
1. The nameisthought to have been transplanted
fromaplacein Walesor Gred Britain. Or it may
have been named by ealy rivermen in thefall of
the yea when the leaves are turning to a golden
color.

GOLDEN ISLE S Thenamethat wasfirst gpplied
to Georgias coastal (barrier) idandsin 1717 ly
Sir Robert Montgomery. Hewrotethat thiscolony
could beaome agolden oppatunity to all comers
(seeMargravateof Azili @). Historians sy that the
islands were given this name by adventurersin
seach of gold. These have dso been cdled THE
GOLDEN ISLESOFGUALE andSEA ISLANDS
(althowgh generall y the Sealdlandsare wnsidered

Gordon Courty

the islands lying below St. Catherines Sound.
Included are Tybee Little Tybeg Skidaway,
Wassaw, Ossabaw, St. Catherines, Sapelo, St.
Simons, Jekyll and Cumberland islands. With a
total areaof 600square mil es, theseislandswere
separated fromthemainlandabout 1,000yeasago.

GOLDEN TRIANGLE (GEORGIA'S). This
commendatory nameisarecant appell ationwhich
refersto the aeadelineated byatriangle formed
by the dti esof Brunswick, FolkstonandWaycross.

GOLD NUGGET HIGHWAY .Thisnamewas
given to State route 60 which extends from
Dahlonega to Gainesvill e. The derivation isin
reference to the old gold mining area aound
Dahlonega(q.v.).

GOOD HOPE, WatonCourty. Incorporated as
atown August 11, 1905Was named to indicae
the ealy settlers optimism for the future of their
community.

GOOSE POND (Militia) DISTRICT), Ogle-
thorpe Courty. Located inthenortheast corner of
the courty where there was aformer community
of GOOSE POND locaed on GOOSE POND
CREEK.

GOPHER TOWN, SemindeCournty. Sometimes
cdled "Go-Town." This name agplied to a
crosgoadson Georgiahighway 39 below Donal son
ville. Thenameis saidto bederived fromthefad
that anenormousgopher (or burrowinglandturtle)
was oncekill ed neaby.

GORDON, Wilkinson Courty. Incorporated as
a town October 7, 1885. This city was first
established as a stop onthe Central of Georgia
Railroad, and remed for itsfirst president, W.W.
Gordon (see Gordon Courty).

GORE, Chattooga County. This placewas first
cdledMT. HICKORY andthen namedfor Willi am
Gore the first postmaster. The post office was
establishedfromDeanber 22, 188 toMay 31, 1901
Sind

o
AT

GORDON COUNTY. Creaed February 13, 18®
with 358 square mil es taken from Bartow (then
cdled Casg andHoyd courties. Namedfor Willi am
Washington Gordon (17961842, attorney and
graduate of West Point whowas eleded thefirst
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president of the Central of GeorgiaRailroad. The
county sea isCalhoun(qg.v.). The courthousewas
destroyed by storm in 1888.A statue of W. W.
Gordonislocaed at Wright Square, Savannah.

GORDON COLLE GE, Barnesvill e. Chartered
fird as MASONICFEMALE SEMINARY in 1852
ThenGORDON INSTITUTE wasestabli shed here
in 1872 by CharlesE. Lambdin, itsfirst president,
whonamedit in hona of hisgoodfriend General
JohnBrown Gordon(18321904. In 1927thename
waschangedto GORDONMILITARY COLLEGE,
andJuly 5, 1972whenit caneunder theUniversity
Systemof Georgiait becane GORDON JUNIOR
COLLEGE. Itwasgivenitspresent namein 1987
HIGHTOWER LIBRARY was named to hona
Mrs. George Hightower.

GORDON MONUMENT, Atlanta. A bronze
equestrian statue of General JohnB. Gordonwas
placed onthe capitol ground whichwasunveil ed
May 25, 1907.

GORDONIA ALTAMAHA STATE PARK,
Tattnal Courty. This209aaeparkislocaedwithin
the city of Reidsvill e, and was originaly cdled
REIDSVILLE STATE PARK. The name was
changed by aa of the General Assmbly, March
3, 1962,to memoriali ze the rare spedes named
Frankliniaor Gordoniaaltamaha. Thisisasmall
treediscovered in 1765 ly naturalists John and
Willi amBartram. Itisknownasthe”Lost Camdlia,”
belongs to the Theaceae family and is found
naturally nowhere but Georgia.

GORMAN'S FERRY, FultonCourty. Theorigind
name of AUSTELL'S FERRY (q.v.).

GOSHEN, Chatham County. This was an dd
Moravian settlement nea old Knoxbaough (g.v.),
andwasabou two mil eswest of Abercornandten
mil es ©uthwest of Ebenezer. Thederivationisfrom
the part of Egypt cdled the"Land o Goshen" in
which the Isradites were settled by Joseph, and
themeaningind catesfruitfulnessandfertili ty. There
istoday a community caled GOSHEN in upper
Lincoln County.

GOUGH, BurkeCourty. Thiscommurity islocated
onGeorgiahighway 305abou twelve mil eswest
of Waynesboro. Laid out in 190, the first post
officewasontheplantation d J.P. Gough. Seealso
Torbit.

GRAB ALL, Jones Courty. An aternate name
of CORNUCOPIA (g.v.).
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GRACEWOOD, RichmondCourty. Incorporated
asatown December 24, 18840 July 1, 1995and
locaed on the site of RICHMOND CAMP
GROUND. Theroat word grace probably wasused
for itsmeaning of "divinemercy or forgiveness"

GRADY COUNTY. Creded August 17, 1905
with 467 square miles taken from Decaur and
Thomascourties. Namedfor Henry Woodin Grady
(1830-1889. whowasthedireding geniusof The
Atlanta Constitution as its managing editor, and
wasan arator whogained anational reputationas
aspokesmanfor the”"New South." The ourty sea
isCairo(q.v.). TheHENRY W.GRADY MONU-
MENT wasplacal at Marietta andForsyth streds
inAtlantashortly after hisdeah,andwasdedicaed
October 21, 1891.In that same yea construction
wasbegun ontheGRADY MEMORIAL HOSATAL
in hishona, which was dedicated May 25, 1891.
Today it occupiestwenty buil dingsinatwo-block
area Also named in his hona are the HENRY
GRADY HIGH SCHOOL of Atlanta, theformer
HENRY GRADY HOTEL there,anddsoHENRY
W.GRADY MEMORIAL HIGHWAY whichruns
from Dalton viaGainesvill eto Athens, where his
home still stands.

GRAHAM, ApplingCourty. A community located
ten miles northwest of Baxley. Named for a
prominent citizen, J.H. Graham.

GRANBERY, Twiggs Courty. This post office
existed from May 7, 1830to June 20, 1837 and
was named for its first postmaster, James M.
Granbery. Itwaslater changedto SONICERA , which
appeasto be a ined name.

GRAND BAY CREEK,Lowndes-Laniercourties.
Also known asLITTLE RIVER (q.v.).

GRAND PRAIRIE, CharltonCourty. Thisisthe
largest of several such"prairies' inthe Okefenokee
Swamp, and covers 50 square miles. These ae
adually marshesof the swamp, andare so named
as they resemble the prairies of the West.

GRANGE, JeffersonCourty. Thiscommunity is
locaed 12mil esnorthwest of Louisvill e Thename
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means"farmlands" andisbelieved to have mme
abou herefrom TheGrange, afarmers organization
which began in the 19th century. In Chatham
County, GRANGE was the name that was given
toaplantation onthe Savannah River, previously
knownasCOWPENS(q.v.), asit wasused by John
and Mary Musgrove for keguing cétle.

GRANITEVILLE , CowetaCourty. SeeGrantvill e.

GRANT PARK, Atlanta. Wasfirst cdled L.P.
GRANT PARK, named for its dona, Colonel
Lemuel P. Grant (18171893, who was chief
enginee of the Atlanta andWest Point Rail road,
andwho kecane wedthy in red estate. He gave
100aaesof woodandin 1882to createthe park;
40aaeswere aldedlater. Includedinthepark are
theCY CLORAMA (gVv.) andthe CANDLER ZOO
whichwasnamedinhona of AsaGriggsCandler,
Sr. who becane sole owner of CocaColain 189
for $2,300.See also Grantvill e, Coweta Courty.

GRANTVILLE , Coweta Courty. Incorporated
as GRANITEVILLE February 13, 1854to July
1,1995.Thiswasthe ealy hame of, and remed
for Colone L.P. Grant (seeGrant Park). Theorigina
community here was cdled CAL(L)ICO COR-
NER(S) urtil therail road camethrough andit was
changed to the present name June 1, 1852.

GRANTVILLE , Greene County. This former
community was incorporated as a town October
10, 188,and ramedfor ealy settler Daniel Grant.
It was located threemil es north of Union Point.

GRAPEVINE, Barrow Courty. Locaedtenmiles
southeast of the present town of Flowery Branch.
This was a 19th century community, so named
becaise it wasin avineyard region.

GRATIS, Walton Courty. Incorporated August
17,1908to July 1, 1995Was said by Mrs. Sams
to have been given this apt name when residents
foundthat nomoney wasrequiredto openthepaost
office in 1893. Bob Harrell writes that the
community was originally cdled FREE, bu the
officidsinWashingtonfelt Gratiswasabetter post
office name.

GRAVES, Terrell Courty. A community located
four mil eswest of Dawson.Establi shedasGRAVES
STATION onthe Central of Georgia Rail road.
Named for Iverson Graves.

GRAVESEND, Liberty Courty. The ealy
settlement that was later known as RICEBORO
(qv.). Settledin 175 bybrothersJohnandWilli am
Gravesfrom South Carolina. They built alanding
herefor shippingrice andcotton,andthe aeawas
named after the Graves brothers ancestral home
in England.

Green

GRAY, CS Jones Courty. Incorporated August
22,1911 .Thistown began as a settlement onthe
property of U. S. Congresaman JamesHenderson
Blourt (18371903), andthenames Doll ytownand
Blourtstonweresuggested for thenameof theplace
Itwasfirst cdled JAMES, fromMr. Blourt'sgiven
name, but afterwards changed toitspresent name
in hona of itsoutstandi ng citi zen, James Madison
Gray, oreof thelarger financiersof theCorfederagy.
The murty sea wasmoved herefrom Clinton(q.v.)
in 1905.See also Blourtsvill e.

GRAY COAT BRANCH, JffersonCourty. This
stream is also cdled GREAT COAT BRANCH

(g.v.).

GRAY SON, Gwinnett Courty. Originaly cdl ed
TRIP(P) urtil Decamber 16, 190when thetown
was incorporated uncer the name BERKELEY .
Thisnamewaschangedto Graysonwithreincorpora
tionDeceamber 17, 1902Derivationsof thesenames
are unknown.

GRAYSON'S LANDING, Head Courty. This
old pacewaslocaed onthe ChattahoocheeRiver.
Named after aScotchman by thenameof Grayson,
whowasagred Indantrader whomarriedanIndian
wife. Itwasafterwardscdl ed PHILPOT'S FERRY .

GRAYSVILLE , Catoosa County. Located five
mil esnorth of Ringgold. Incorporated August 23,
1872, with John D. Gray as one of the five
commissonersof thenew town, whichwasfounaded
in 1849 ly Gray, anativeof England.Hewaschief
contrador for the Western and Atlantic Rail road,
who laid the first tradks aadossthe Appalachian
barrier, bultfrom 1838to 1850 Skirmishesoccurred
here September 10, 1863, por to the battle of
Chickamauga. They lost their charter July 1, 1995

GREAT COAT BRANCH, JeffersonCourty.
Thisstreaminthelower sedion d the wurty was
given atopornym derived from the old name for
an overcoat. Itisfrequently cdled GRAY COAT
BRANCH by neaby residents. Today'smapsl| abel
thiscreek, COAT CREEK. Perhapsthe catographer
copied only part of thenamefromapreviousmap.

GREAT OGEECHEE RIVER. SeeOgeetee
River.

GREEN, Evans County. An ealy community of
Bull och Courty locaed 7 ¥2 milesnorth of Claxton
Named for the postmaster andloca merchant, M.J.
Green.
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GREENBUSH BRANCH, Walker Courty.
Located in the southwest sedion d the cunty,
it flowsinto West ArmucheeCreek nea theformer
community of GREENBUSH. The name of this
placehad been VICK SBURG urtil it waschanged
by Mr. S. Bomar, the postmaster, who had a
beautiful green bwsh in hisyard.

J.S. GREEN COLLE GIATE INSTITUTE,
Demorest. Thiswasthe ealy nameof PEDMONT
COLLEGE (q.v.).

GREENE COUNTY.CreaedFebruary 3, 1786
with 403 square miles taken from Washington
County. Named in hona of Major Genera

Nathanad Greene (17421786 of Rhodcelsland,
for hisoutstanding servicein the Revolution.He
heroicdly defeaed the Briti shin South Carolina
September 8, 1781,and afterwards retired at

Mulberry GrovePlantation(qg.v.) nea Savannah,
whichwasgiven imby the State of Georgia. Also
named in his hona is GREENE SQUARE in
Savannah, and the GREENE MONUMENT, of

which the @rnerstone was laid by LaFayettein
1825at JohrsonSquarein Savannah. The ournty
sea is Greensboro (q.v.).

GREENSBORO, CS Greene Courty. First
charteredin 1786, ésignated courty sea Decenber
1, 1802andincorporated December 10, 1803vhen
thetown'snamewas el ed GREENSBOROUGH.
Settled in the 1770s and ramed in hona of
Nathanad Greene (see Greene Courty).

GREEN'S CUT, BurkeCourty. Thiscommunity
islocaed six miles north of Waynesborough on
the Central of Georgia Railway, and was named
for therail road cut runningthroughthe plantation
of Moses P. Green.

GREENVILLE, CS Meriwether Courty.
Incorparated Decamber 20, 182&ndagainin 1851
Itwas pelled GREENEVILLE, bu themidde"e"
waslater dropped.Laid out in 1828 orland ovned
by General Hugh W. Ector. The town was first
settled by Adam B. Ragan who huilt alog cabin
storeonwhat isnow the courthousesquare. It was
namedfor Nathanad Greene (see Greene Courty).
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GREENWOOD, Mitchdl Courty. Thiscommunity
located ninemil eswest of Camill awasestabli shed
about 1880. Named for a beautiful grove of
evergreen live oak trees foundgrowing here.

GRESHAMVILLE, Greene Courty. This
community is located ten miles northwest of
Greenshoro. Probably namedfor V olney Gresham,
or his father. Brinkley says it was named for an
old fort built nea the Davis Gresham settlement
in 1786.

GRESSTON, Dodge Courty. Thiscommunityis
locaed seven mil esnorthwest of Eastman. Named
for GeorgeV. Gressof Atlanta, whoin 188 built
oneof thelargest sawmiill sintheSouth, at thisplace
Gresspurchased the painting, Battle of Atlanta,
in 1898and gave it to that city to be used asthe
basis of the Cyclorama(q.v.). He dso bowght and
gave 86 animalsto start the Atlanta Zoo.

GREY'S SWAMP, Liberty County. In 1784it
wasreqorded that George Grey had adjoining lands
to this svamp.

GRIFFIN, CS $dding Courty. "Pimiento Center

of the World" Incorporated Decamber 24, 1843
whenthiswaswithin Pike County. Thepost office
wasfirst established here &PLEASANT GROVE,

April 14, 1826 with the name being changed to
Griffin, February 2, 1841.Thetownwaslaid ou

in 1840when Colonel Lewis Lawrence Griffin
purchased 800aaes here, and so the placewas
named for him. Later becoming ageneral, Griffin
waspresident of theMamnandWestern Rail road,

also abanker, planter and Indian fighter.

GRISWOLDVILLE , JonesCourty. (Unincorpo-

rated) Thisdeadtownwaslocaed abou ten mil es
southeast of Gray. The GRISWOLD post office
served until August 1, 1928 Named for himself

by Samuel Griswold (17901867), native of

Conredicut, whocamefromClinton(g.v.)in 188
to establi sh the town. This becane aflourishing

manufaduring and agricultural center where
Griswold produced the nation's best cotton gn,

selling upto 1,200ginsper yea. In March 1862,
he anverted from cottonginmacdinery tomaking
.36cdi brebrassframe Confederate Colt revolvers,

and produced abou 3,500.He dso made several

thousand pikesfor Governor Brown, whichwere
then burned by Sherman'sarmy at Mill edgevill e.

Then his fadories as well as his mansion were
burned by Brigadier General J.L. Kil patrick's3rd

Cavalry Division,in November 1864.
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GROANING ROCK, JacksonCourty. Thiswas
thefirst permanent settlement in the courty, and
wasestabli shed January 20, 1784whenalandgrant
deadwasaajuired by a Wili amDunson, d German
descant. Thenameof theplacewasprobably derived
fromarock by nearby Sandy Creek. It'sheen said
it was because of the sound made by the wind
blowinginthehal ow of therock formationthere.
The name was later changed to HARMONY
GROVE(q.v.) andfinallyto COMM ERCE(q.v.).

GROOVERVILLE, BrooksCourty. Incorporated
asatown Decanber 18, 185%0July 1, 1995An
ealy post officewasestabli shed here July 16, 1833
at whichtimethesitewaswithin ThomasCounty.
Thefirst postmaster was JoshuaGroover, andthe
vill agewasnamed fromseveral Groover famili es
wholivedinthevicinity. WhentheAtlantic& Gulf
railroad came through in 186061, it missed
Grooverville by a few miles, so a station was
establi shed onthe line neaby cdled NUMBER
17 or GROOVER'S STATION. The post office
wastransferred to thisnew locaion February 28,
1879,whenit adopted the name of DIXIE (q.v.).

GROVANIA, Houston Courty: A community
among peatand pecangroves, locaed eight miles
southeast of Perry. Incorporated asatown August
16, 19090 July 1,1995.

GROVE CREEK, Banks Courty. This grean
apparently deriveditsnamefromanadjoiningarea
formerly known as THE GROVE.

GROVE CREEK, OgletharpeCounty. Risesnarth
of Crawford and flows northward into the South
Fork of the Broad River. Thenameof this gream
was dtered in abou 1800 from its ealier
designation, GOLDEN GROVE CREEK (q.v.).

GROVE LEVEL, Banks County. This former
community was located nead GROVE CREEK.
Still standing today is Grove Level Church, five
miles outh of Homer.

GROVETOWN, ColumbiaCourty. A descriptively
named town, incorporated as GROVETON
September 29, 1881.

GUALDAQUINI, GlynnCourty. Anealy name
of JEKYLL ISLAND (qg.v.).

GUALE. Pronourced "Wallie" The Spanish
establi shed their first settlement in what is now

Georgia on St. Catherines Island (g.v.) in 1566.

Gwinnett Courty

They namedtheplace'Guale" after the dnief Indian
of thetribefound orthisisland. Some historians
haveinterpreted the name ashaving been derived
from the Indian word Wahali, "The South." The
Georgia mast constituted thedistrict of Guale and
theinlandareawas cdled Tama(qg.v.). It wasall
part of what wasnamed (L&) Florida(g.v.) during
the Spanish era. Even beforethat, the Spanishcdled
the region Bimini.

GUALEQUINI, GlynnCourty. Anealy Spanish
name of JEKYLL ISLAND (g.v.).

GUAL QUINI, GlynnCourty. Pronourced "Wal-
queen-ie." Thiswas the old Indian name of ST.
SIMONS SOUND, andmeans"Watersof Guale."
See Guale.

GUAXULE, WhiteCourty. WasaCherokeelndian
town (see Naoooched).

GUESS, Henry Courty. This was an ealy post
officelocated fivemil esnorthwest of McDonough.
Named for the Cherokeelndian, Sequoyah, whose
Engli sh name was George Guess(see Sequoyah
Caverns). The post officewas moved to Flippen
(g.v.)in 1886.

GULLETTSVILLE, Monroe Courty. Was
apparently named for George W. Gull ett whowas
alargelandowner here. Thenameof the mmunity
waschangedto CABANISS(g.v.) inthelate 1800s
in hona of Judge E.G. Cabanissof Forsyth.

GUM POND, Mitchell County. This former
community was located east of Baconton. The
residentselededthisname asanaternativesince
none could spell their first choice, CypressPond.

GUNPOWDER SPRINGS, ButtsCounty. The
ealy name of INDIAN SFRINGS (q.v.), and d
POWDER SFRINGS (g.v.), Cobb Courty.

GWINNETT COUNTY. Created by ads of
Decamber 15and 19, 1818yith 436squaremil es



Gwinnett County

acquired by Cherokeecessionof July 18,1817 and
Creek cession of January 22, 1818. Thiswas an
original county which bearstheillustrious name
of Button Gwinnett (1735-1777) whowasade egate
from Georgiaat the Continental Congress, andwas
asigner of the Declaration of Independence. The
autograph of Button Gwinnett is considered the
most expensiveintheworld, worth about $250,000
today. He purchased St. Catherines Island from
ThomasBosomworth about 1766. Gwinnett served
Georgia a short while as governor until he died
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May 19, 1777 frominjuriessufferedinaduel with
General LachlanMclntosh. Itisnot knownfor sure
where Gwinnett isburied, but it isbelieved to be
in Savannah at Colonial Park Cemetery. In 1865,
thefirst Negrotobelynchedinthe Stateof Georgia,
suffered thisfatein Gwinnett County. The county
seat isLawrenceville(q.v.). The court house was
destroyed by firein 1871. Also named in honor
of Button Gwinnett is GWINNETT STREET in
Savannah, and another street of the samenamein
Augusta.



